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the oath to the witness.) 

THE WITNESS: 	I do. 

THE CLERK: Thank you. Please be
 seated. 

Please state your full name and 
spell it for the 

record. 

THE WITNESS: 	Ralph McGehee, M-c-G-e-h-e-e. 

MR. KENNEDY: Thank you, your Honor. 

DIRECT EXAMINATION 

BY MR. KENNEDY: 

Q Mr. McGehee, tell us where you p
resently reside, 

sir? 

A 	Reside in Hudgin, Virginia.
 

Q What is your occupation now? 

A 	I am a retired CIA officer.
 I am an author doing 

some writing. 

Q When did you retire from the Cen
tral Intelligence 

Agency? 

A 	I retired from the compan
y in February of 1977. 

Q When you retired, sir, was that 
under honorable 

conditions? 

21 
A 	Yes. Right after I was reti

red I was awarded the 

Career Intelligence Medal for ex
ceptional service. 

Q Is that Career Intelligence Meda
l symbolized by 

the pin you are wearing in your 
lapel now? 
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A 	Yes sir, it is. 

Q Since leaving the Central Intelligence Agency 

you have been -- you have been engaged in what kind of work, 

sir? 

A 	I have been conducting research for a book that 

I have written about the agency. 	I have also written some 

articles in newspapers and magazines about the agency'. 

Q 	You have when you became -- 

MR. KENNEDY: Strike the question. 

Q Tell us when it was that you first joined the 

company, the Central Intelligence Agency? 

A 	I joined the company in January 1952. 

Q 	You were on active duty continually with the 

company until 1977? 

A 	Yes, that is correct. 

Q A period of 25 years? 

A 	Yes. 

Q During those 25 years you had to sign a contract 

and to take an oath with reference to classified documents 

and security procedures of the United States, did you not? 

A 	Yes, I did. 

Q You are aware, sir, of your responsibilities with 

reference to that which you can divulge and that which you 

cannot divulge? Is that fair to say? 

EASTERN DISTRICT COURT REPORTERS 
'UNTTE:`, STATSS 7.:STRICT COURT 
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A 	I am very aware o
f it. 

Q And if, any question t
hat I put to you durin

g 

my examination you fee
l impinges upon an are

a of classified 

information you will o
f course inform us of 

that and not 

disclose that informat
ion? 

A 	That is right. 

Q Now, during the proces
s of writing your book

, 

which has not yet been
 published, has it? 

A 	No, it has not. 

Q Did you according to t
he rules of the compan

y 

submit your manuscript
 to the CIA for prior 

approval as 

was required by the la
w and your contract wi

th them? 

A 	I did. 	I did thi
s on two separate occa

sions. 

I wrote two manuscript
s. The initial manuscr

ipt was sort 

of a research effort t
hat I was advised late

r by the 

publishers was not ver
y saleable. And the se

cond version 

I submitted last year.
 And on both occasions

 that I 

submitted, the book we
nt through a long clea

rance process 

in working with the ag
ency to insure that no

thing in the book 

was classified. 

Q And during the course 
of that effort to get

-your 

manuscript cleared so 
that no secrets would 

be divuleged and 

national security woul
d be compromised, did 

you and the 

people who were giving
 the clearance at the 

Central Intelligence 
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Agency disagree on points of classification procedure? 

MR. KIRBY: 	Objection. 

MR. KENNEDY: It is preparatory, your Honor. 

THE COURT: 	If it is preparatory, I will allow 

it so long as it is coming to an end. 

MR. KENNEDY: It is, your Honor, as we all are. 

A 	Yes, on one occasion the agency ruled in eight 

major categories of information that I couldn't discuss in 

the book. 

I was advised that I had a right to appeal the 

decision to the DDCI, and Bobby Inman. 	I appealed the 

decisions on the eight categories to Mr. Inman and he ruled 

in my favor in every single case. 

THE COURT: You appealed to whom? 

THE WITNESS: 	The Deputy Director of Central 

Intelligence, Mr. Robert Inman. 

THE COURT: Was this an appeal within the 

structure of the CIA? 

THE WITNESS: 	Yes, within the structure of the 

CIA. 

Q 	Mr. Inman may also be known as Admiral? Is that 

correct? 

A Admiral. 

Q 	Is that correct? 

EASTERN DISTRICT COURT REPORTERS 
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A 	That's correct. 

Q 	Tell me this, sir, you are married, are you? 

A 	Yes, I am. 

Q Do you have children? 

A 	I have four children and four grandchildren. 

Q Tell us briefly of your educational background, 

Mr. McGehee? After high school, where did you go to college? 

What did you study?

•  A 	I went to Notre Dame on a football scholarship. 

I studied business administration. 

Q What years were you at Notre Dame? 

A 	1946 to 1950. 

Q You didn't happen to be a member of Frank Lehigh's 

undefeated three years team? 

A 	Yes, I was. 

Q You would not by any chance be an Irish catholic, 

would you? 

A 	No, I am a Scotch-Irish-Dutch-English Protestant. 

Q Nevertheless, Mr. Lehigh allowed you to play footbal 

for Notre Dame? 

A 

A 

Q 

1952? 

He did indeed. 

And what year did you graduate from Notre Dame? 

I graduated in 1950. 

You joined then the Central Intelligence Agency in 

EASTERN DISTRICT COURT REPORTERS 
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A 	1952. 

Q 	With reference to the time you were in the Ce
ntral 

Intelligence Agency did your formal education cont
inue, 

sir, and if so, what courses did you take within t
he company 

itself? 

A 	I took numerous courses. 	Initially of cou
rse 

youn have to go through a basic training course on
 how to 

be a CIA operator, case officer. That consisted o
f the 

basic operations course, an operator's course, and
 in my 

case, paramilitary course. And later on in my care
er I had 

to take a session of operations courses, an advanc
ed operations 

course. 	I also studied the Thai language at 
which I became 

almost fluent in. 	I took courses in Chinese 
and I also 

took French. 

(Continued on next page.) 
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Q The headquarters of the Central
 Intelligence 

Agency is at Langley, Virginia, 
is it not? 

A 	Yes, that is correct. 

Q And the company has maintained s
eparate offices 

around the world, has it not? 

A 	Yes, it has. 

Q Will you tell us, sir, if you c
an, during those 

25 years you were a career offic
ers with the company how 

much of your time was spent in 
the field and how much of 

your time was actually spent in 
headquarters? 

A 	A rough breakdown is 15 y
ears overseas and 10 

years in headquarters, including
 my period of training. 

Q Did you receive as a result of y
our work with the 

CIA any awards, medals, or citat
ions? 

A 	Yes, I did. 	I received an
 award, as I mentioned, 

the Career Intelligence Award. A
nd I also received an Honorable 

Service Award, the Vietnam Serv
ice Award. 	I received a 

cash award, a certificate of mer
it, from the Director for 

a suggestion that I submitted o
n how to counter communist 

insurgency. 

Q You are presently a retired pens
ioner receiving 

a pension for your 25 years of 
service in the CIA? 

A 	That is correct. 

Q Have you attempted to familiariz
e yourself with the 
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 

22S CACMAN PLAZA EAST 



4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

McGehee-direct-Kennedy 

literature in the public domai
n on the intelligence communit

y 

in the United States in genera
l, and the Central Intelligenc

e 

Agency in particular? 

A 	Yes, I believe I have rea
d just about every book 

that has ever been written abo
ut the CIA particularly, and 

many that have been written by
 the National Security establi

s 

ment in general. 

These publications I found to 
be most helpful where 

the Senate Intelligence Commit
tee report, the Church Committ

e 

Report it is known as, the si
x volume version. They had 

even investigated the agency.
 The Pike Committee Report of

 

the House Intelligence Committ
ee. The Rockefeller Commission

 

Report. The House Intelligence
 Report on the failure of 

intelligence in Iran. The Hou
se Intelligence Committee Rep

ort 

of the intelligence report of 
-- intelligence reporting 

on Central America, which was
 just published in September,

 

1982: 

I also sort of studied and rea
d over and over 

again the Pentagon Papers, var
ious volumes of the Pentagon 

Papers, and the Government's D
epartment of Defense called 

by -- in addition to the Penta
gon Papers -- those deal mostl

y 

with Vietnam, the Senate Grave
l, and the New York Times 

one volume edition cf the Pen
tagon Papers. 

I have also read, as I think 
I mentioned earlier, 

EASTERN DISTRICT COURT REPORTER
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most books written about the agency by e
x-employees both 

pro and ccn. 

Q Have you attempted to --

MR. KENNEDY: Strike that. 

Q You are then familiar with the technique
s employed 

by the company, by the CIA, in intellige
nce gathering, are 

you not? 

A 	Yes. 

Q Are you also familiar with the ways in w
hich-

the CIA recruits and investigates the re
cruits that th4' 

agency makes? 

A 	Yes. 

Q Can you tell us what is the paramount or
 

primary consideration involved in intell
igence gathering 

techniques? 

A 	Secrecy is of course an essential
 in all clandestine 

operations. And I suppose in most secret
 of !secrets is the 

protection of the names of the agents. 

As a matter of fact, in June of '82 Cong
ress has 

made it a criminal offense to reveal the
 names of its 

government agents. 

(Continued on nexdt page.) 
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DIRECT EXAM/NAT
ION BY M. KENNE

DY: 

Q And you would not,
 sir, reveal any n

ame or 

information that e
ither your oath to

 the company or 

the law for classi
fied information p

rocedures for-

bade to disclose,
 would you? 

A 	NO.I would n
ot. 

Q Tell us, briefly 	
I just need a thum

bnail 

scetch for our pur
poses of the struc

ture of the Centra
l 

Intelligence Agenc
y, that is, how it

 is put together 

among its directiv
es? 

A 	The agency i
s roughly composed

 -- this thas 

changed over the y
ears. 

The more general c
omposition of th

e agency 

composed of four d
irectorates under 

the Director of 

the Central Intell
igence Agency -- C

entral Intelli-

gence. 

You have the Direc
tor of Administrat

ion, 

the Director of Op
erations, the Dire

ctor of Intelli- 
 

pence, and the Dir
ector of Science 

and Technology. 

O Tell us with refer
ence to each of th

ose 

four directorates 
what their general

 function, duties 

or responsibilitie
s are? 

A 	Director o
f Administration w

ithin the company 

handles such thing
s as communication

s, logistics, 

personnel, medical
, finance. 
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There are sev
eral other ca

tegories that
 

don't occur t
o me at the m

oment. 

The Director
 of Intellig

ence collate
s all 

reports, fini
shed intellig

ence reports 
for the intel

li-, 

gence communi
ty. 

The Director 
of Science an

d Technology 
is 

involved in r
esearch on th

e equipment r
equirements 

for the clan
destine serv

ices and is 
involved in 

evalua- 

I 

ing intellige
nce on those 

items of high
 technology. 

The Director 
of Operations

, of course, 
is 

sort of the 
key director

ate. This is
 the directo

rate 

that directs 
the covert op

erations and 
gathers the 

intelligence 
around the wo

rld. 

Q To which of 
the four dir

ectorates --

Administratio
n, Intelligen

ce, Operation
s, or Science

 

and Technolog
y, were you a

ssianed durin
g your twenty

-

five years wi
th the compan

y? 

A 	The tot
al twenty-fiv

e years was i
n the 

directorate o
f operations.

 

Q That was the 
one responsib

le for covert
 

operations an
d intelligenc

e gathering? 

A 	Correct. 

Q I would like 
to go into yo

ur personal e
x-

periences ove
r those twent

y-five years 
in the opera-

tions directo
rate. 
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Did vou have, d
uring the cours

e of those 

twenty-five yea
rs of experienc

e, any manageme
nt or 

managerial func
tion, and, if s

o, describe the
m for 

us, briefly, pl
ease? 

A 	I had manag
erial responsib

ilities over • 

the course of m
y career with t

he agency. 

My initial tour
 in Japan and t

he Philippines 

I was Assistant
 Chief of a ver

y large records
 unit 

involved in -- 
I have to be a 

little careful 
how'/ 

say things. 

I am limited to
 what I can tal

k about here. 

In investigatio
ns and tracings

, and things 

of this nature,
 that is. 

Following that,
 I was head of 

a unit in 

Langley to con
duct file chec

kings and clea
rances for 

woldwide elemen
t of the direct

orate of operat
ions. 

Following that 
in Thailand, I 

supervised 

Agency Officers
 Administering 

various Actions
 and 

intelligence c
hecks programs

 within A.E.W.
 in the 

northeast provi
nce. 

Prior to going 
to the province

, I devised 

a counter-insur
gency technique

 for a fifty th
ousand 

man national --
 Thai national 

police force, a
nd I 

was assigned to
 the province t

o implement that pro-

gram. 
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This program, by
 the way, receiv

ed the 

highest acolades
 from both Thai 

and American int
elli-

gence officials.
 

In Vietnam, I wa
s officer in cha

rge of 

agency programs 
in 'Giadnih Prov

ince, the Provin
ce 

surrounding Saig
on, for two mont

hs, I believe, a
nd 

then I was assig
ned as the offic

er in charge age
ncy 

liaison with the
 chief of specia

l police of -- t
he 

fifty thousand m
an force of the 

Vietnam Special 
Po-

lice. 

Part of the fift
y thousand man P

olice 

Force.. 

Q Did you also ser
ve in a supervis

ory or 

management funct
ion as the chair

man of the profe
ssion-

al panel within 
the agency itsel

f? 

A 	Yes, I did
. 

I was a chairman
 of professional

 panel for 

another departme
nt director of o

perations person
nel. 

Q The function of 
that panel, I su

ppose, would 

be fair to say t
hey decided who 

were in the comp
any 

got promoted and
 to what level t

hey were elevate
d? 

A 	Correct. 

Q That responsibil
ity was assigned

 to you for 

a period of time
, was it? 
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A 	That is correct.
 

Q 	Aside from the m
anagement function fo

r a 

moment, did your'inve
stigative experience 

in your 

twenty-five years wit
h the company, and if

 so, de-

scribe that for us, b
riefly? 

A 	I had field inve
stigative experience.

 

I refer to field as o
verseas within the 

company. It is used 
synonamous. 

I can't really talk a
bout, but in the supe

r-

visory positions with
in the records elemen

ts I had 

a lot of investigativ
e responsibilities. 

Q 	Another category
 of agency operations

 -- 

agency activity as I 
understand it, is the

 opera-

tional aspects. 

Have you had operatio
ns, experience within

 

the C.I.A.? 

A 	Yes, sir. 

MR..KIRBY: Objection
, your Honor! rele-

vance. 

THE COURT: It is dra
gging, Mr. Kennedy. 

MR. KENNEDY! I quali
fied the gentleman 

as an expert in one o
f the most complicate

d 

field in the world. 

I will get us there 
as quickly as I can.

 

I assure you. 
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THE COURT: Try to m
ove it along. 

MR. KENNEDY: I will
, your Honor. Unfor

tu-

nately, I have to pu
t one word in front 

of 

another. 

THE WITNESS: I serv
ed as a Para-milita

ry 

officer, covert oper
ator, intelligence c

ollec-

tor, and intelligenc
e analyst:.  

Q 	Lastly, have y
ou had experience in

 the 

research function, p
rojects or. studies 

of the C.I.A.? 

A 	Yes, sir, I hav
e. 

I have written many 
research papers on t

he 

structure of the Tha
i Communist Party, t

he Philippine 

Communist Party. the
 European Communish 

Parties, 

and their relationsh
ips to the Soviet an

d Chinese form 

of Communism. 

One was study how th
e Communists conduct

 

a revolution. This 
was part of my effo

rt in find- 

ing how to counter C
ommunism. 

Q 	During the peri
od of your tenure wi

th the 

agency, did you have
 occasion to be assi

gned respon-

sibility with respec
t to record keeping 

within the 

company? 

A 	?v initial tou
r assignment, for fi

ve years, 

I was involved in re
cords keeping in inv

estigative, 

file tracing, and ma
intaining the file s

ystem of 
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the agency, a
nd through my

 career I fou
nd. It 

to keep very 
good records,

 and was invo
lved in 

Vietnam. 

I was involve
d in keeping 

records that 
were 

key in produc
ing a dramati

c arrest of a
 North Viet-

namese intell
igence nets w

ithin South V
ietnam. 

Q 	Do you
 feel, based 

upon your exp
erience 

and your fami
larity with t

he laturature
 about the 

intelligence 
community in 

general, the 
C.I.A. in par

-

ticular, that
 you are fami

liar with-all
 aspects of 

the agency's 
operations? 

A 	Yes. 

Q 	You fe
el qualified 

as an expert 
to render 

opinions with
 reference to

 the activiti
es of the 

Central Intel
ligence Agenc

y and how it 
functions? 

A 	Yes. 

Give us, if y
ou will -- st

rike that for
 a 

moment. 

With referenc
e to the Cent

ral Intellige
nce 

Agency, do yo
u know whethe

r or not it i
s authorized,

 

under its cha
rger, to do d

omestic cover
t operations?

 

MR. KIRBY: O
bjection, yo

ur Honor; re
le- 

vance. 

THE COURT: I
 will permit

 it. 

MR. KENNEDY: 
Thank You, yo

ur Honor. 
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A 	It was il
legal for

, 1 

don't kno
w the exa

ct date, 
January o

f '82, Pr
esident 

Reagan is
sued an e

xecutive 
order all

owing the
 agency 

to conduc
t covert 

operation
s within 

the Unite
d States.

 

Prior to 
that time

, it was 
illegal. 

Q 	Can 
you tell 

us, sir, 
how, with

in the 

structure
 of the a

gency, re
cords or 

files are
 main-

tained, t
hat is, h

ow inform
ation is 

stored so
 that 

it may be
 accessed

 or gotte
n into? 

Just brie
fly, desc

ribe that
 procedur

e? 

A 	Gene
rally, it

 is compu
torized. 

Within th
e D.D.O. 

you have 
the D.D.I

. his 

its file
s. The D

.D.O. ha
s its fi

les. 

The D.D.A
. has var

ious file
s -- pers

onnel, 

security,
 and so f

orth. 

In the D.
D.O. has 

the recor
ds interr

oga-

tion divi
sion whic

h maintai
ns the ce

ntral fil
es for 

all of D.
D.O. 

The sub-o
fficers r

etain the
ir own fi

les of 

each of 
the info

rmation 
which is

 duplica
tory. 

Within th
e D.D.O. 

you used 
to have t

he 

counter i
ntelligen

ce staff,
 which ha

s gone th
rough 

various c
hanges si

nce I lef
t, which 

is sort o
f a 

super sec
ret eleme

nt within
 the D.D.

O. 

There is 
no correl

ation bet
ween the 

C.I. 
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staffs' files and the
 main R.I.D. files: r

ecords in-

terrogation division.
 

Within the C.I. -- co
unter intelligence 

staff, you have -- yo
u had for a longer pe

riod of 

time, the super secre
t within that super s

ecret staff, 

special operations gr
oup which was known u

nder the 

code name, Calos -- w
hich conducted covert

 operations 

within the United Sta
tes which none of us 

knew any-

thing about it. 

Its information was m
aintained separate 

from the counter inte
lligence files and ke

ep sepaeate 

from the D.D.O. files
. 

Q You said the Calos wa
s operating on do-

mestic, internal Unit
ed States covert oper

ations: 

is that correct? 

A 	Correct. 

MR. KIRBY; Objection
. 	I move that it 

be stricken. 	Quite
 irrelevant. 

THE COURT: I will pe
rmit it. The motion 

is denied. 

Q These covert operatio
ns within the United 

States would be a vi
olation of the C.I.A

. charter: 

is that correct? 

A 	Yes. 

Q Was that one of the r
easons that they 
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were kept -- these c
overt activities wer

e kept 

super secret as you 
have described? 

A 	They didn't wan
t word to leak out e

ven 

among other D.D.O. p
eople. 

Q 	Is there a c
oncept within the O.

E. within 

the company called s
oft files? 

A 	There is, inde
ed. 

This is sort of an u
nofficial file that 

never gets into any 
sort of records syst

em. 

There is no permanen
t record made. If you 

are dealing -- with 
sort of a specially 

sensitive 

case, might talk abo
ut an assanination o

r the over-

throw of an ally -- 
the agency would wan

t no record 

of that to be found 
anywhere later on. 

People would establi
sh a soft file, make

 

the memo, and throw 
the copy in and reac

tion on that 

proposal or whatever
 happened, then the 

material could 

be thrown away -- de
stroyed and no recor

ds would ever 

exist. 

Q 	Was there not, s
ir, some central int

e- 

grated or united rec
ord keeping system

 whereby one --

with appropriate cle
arance of course, --

 could get 

into and find insome
 central place any C

.I.A. rec-

ord? 

A 	No. 
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4 	// 11 

iL 	
As a matter of fact, I found this to be 

2 	a major problem when I was supervising the 
investiga- 

Ler 
tive activities. 

Because we were missing so much informa-

tion, so much existed that we were not find
ing, so 

I wrote a suggestion for the suggesting awa
res com-

mittee, saying we must bring together in on
e central 

place at least in a file card indicies, all
 the .in-

formation -- persons may not have access to
 the 

information itself, but at least be a name 
indicies 

centralized. 

The chief of the suggestions awards panel 

said it is a very good suggestion, we have 
many others 

just like it, but it will never happen. 

Q 	Did they tell you.wh Y, sir, it never h
appen- 

ed? 

MR. KIRBY: Objection. 

THE COURT: I will sustain that. 

Do you have an opinion, sir, as an expert 

why it would never happen? 

MR. KIRBY: Objection. 

THE COURT: I will allow that. 

MR. KENNEDY: Thank vou. 

A 	Yes, sir; because of the security cons
idera- 

tions of not allowing other D.D.O., other p
eople of 
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q.2 

the agency to know the s
ensitive operations. 

Q 	The gaps in re
cord keeping, or the l

ack of 

integration of record 
keeping is deliberate, you 

are telling us; is tha
t correct? 

A 	Very much so. 

Q 	Was there an occas
ion, sir, when while y

ou 

were in a field, or in
 doing work from a sta

tion 

where you had headquar
ters to prove you with

 informa-* 

tion about a particula
r individual? 

A 	There was one 
outstanding example. 

I had many, but this wa
s probably the key 

one -- 

MR. KIRBY: Objection. 

A 	I was in Thaila
nd. 

MR. KIRBY: Objection 
to giving an example.

 

If he is an expert,he 
should give an onin- 

ion. 

MR. KENNEDY: He is g
iving personal ex-

periences to buttress 
his opinion. 

THE COURT: We don't need an illustra-

tion. 

MR. KENNEDY: I believe we do. It will 

relate -- 

THE COURT: I will permit it, then. 
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MR. KENNEDY
: Thank you. 

A 	I ask
ed for a fi

le trace on
 an individ

ual 

, that I 
was conduct

ing an inve
stigation o

n in Thaila
nd. 

I got back 
a -- no rec

ord -- resp
onse. / 

knew that t
here had to

 be somethi
ng from wha

t was' 

available i
n the stati

on. 

There had t
o be someth

ing in head
quarters 

about the i
ndividual. 

I waited un
til I was n

ext 

assigned to
 the compan

y headquart
ers in Lang

ley and 

I went down
 to the D.D

.I. -- sepa
rate from t

he 

D.D.O. -- C
entral Refe

rence Servi
ce -- that 

is the 

record keep
ing element

 of the D.D
.I. 

13 
	 I traced th

e man's nam
e and -- in

 "F" 

14 
	

file. To my
 amazement,

 they had a
 shoebox fu

ll of 

13 
	

information
 on this in

dividual --
 a whole gr

oup of 

16 
	

three by fi
ve cards --

 multiple e
ntry three 

by five 

17 	cards. 

18 	 The man was
 of such in

terest that
 they 

19 
	

had written
 a biograph

ic data she
et on key i

ndivid-, 

20 	uals. And w
hile I was 

going through the box -- 

21 	written ano
ther data s

heet on him
 because he

 was of 

22 
	prime inter

est, vet I 
received on

 my respons
e a 

23 
	record -- a -- no reco

rd -- respo
nse. 

24 
	 There are m

any example
s that I co

uld give 

25 	you, but
 that is on

e. 
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• Thank you. 

When you were recruited to become a career 

officer in the C. /.A. , were you allowed to tell people 

who you were employed by? 

A 	No, I was not. 

Q Were you provided with cover stories? 

A 	Yes, I was. 

Q Weren't vou even allowed to tell your own 

family? 

A 	No. 

Q Either your children or Mrs. McGehee? 

A 	I initially overcame that Tavier 

and did tell my wife. It was not until years later 

that my children began to really recognize that I 

wasn't telling them the truth that I did -- and they 

were older. I could extract an oath of secrecy from 

that I told them. 

Q Is there, within the jargon of the inteeli-

gence community language, a phrase with which you 

are familiar, called plausible deniability? 

A 	Yes. 

Q Would you tell us what that means? 

MR. KIRBY: Objection. 

THE COURT: I will allow it. 
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A 	It is generally s
ynonamous with se

crecy. 

In a case that an
 operation is blo

wn, it 

separates the Ame
rican case office

r from being ex-

posed, and separa
tes the American 

case officer from
 

being -- bringing
 the chain back t

o the Unites Stat
es 

Government. 

It senarates at 
the worse case, 

the Presi-

dent can deny tha
t he knew anythin

g about the opera
-

tion. 

You build plausi
ble denial in th

e opera-

tion. Secrecy wo
uld be another w

ord. 

It allows you to
 deny that it is

 an United 

States Government
 activity or that

 the President kn
ew 

about in, in the 
worst case. 

Q 	Plausible de
niability prevent

s someone from 

tracing beck info
rmation or activi

ty to its source 

within the C.I.A.
 or a source with

in the Government
 

in general; is th
at correct? 
	 1 

A 	Yes. 

Q 	Does it al
ways apply to not

 operations, but 

to actual operati
ves or case agent

s or coreer offi-

cers? 

A 	Oh, yes. 

It makes -- open
 to multiple ope

rational 

conditions. 
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If you were talking to an agent, he would 

not know that you are with the United States Govern-

ment. He would not have any way of contacting you. 

You would give him an alias that I will con-

tact you in such and such ways. 

This is done in a variety of clandestine 

means, dead drop, live drop, radio communications, 

post office box, a barber shop where you could leave 

messages and pick ther up. 

There is nc real direct line command hack 

to -- from the agency to the case officer, or from 

the covert operator to the case officer. 

Q 	Are you familiar with the concept of cover 

or deep cover? 

A 	Yes, I am. 

Tell us what those are, briefly, please? 

A 	Cover, is a story -- untrue story that con- 

ceals what you really are, and what you are really 

doing. 

For instance, many -- some C.I.A. people 

are overseas as Embassy employees or State Department 

employees 

The John Hannon, former chief of A.I.D. 

admitted that C.I.A. used an I.D. cover overseas. 
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17 	
McGehee-direc

t-Kennedy 

Other people 
are recorded.

 The military
 

is used by th
e agency over

seas. 

This is gener
ally called -

- cover is no
t 

deep. You are
 connected wi

th the United
 States Gover

n-

Tent. 

And deep cove
r, would be w

here your con
- 

nection 	I c
an't get much

 into this --
 would not be

 

direct with t
he United Sta

tes Governmen
t. 

Q 	The con
cept, "need t

o know," -- i
s that a 

concept that 
is a term of 

art within th
e intelligenc

e 

community? 

A 	Very earl
y in your tra

ining, you ar
e told 

.c.his is a ke
y requirement 

that the perso
n -- the 

American case
 officer is o

nly allowed t
o kno,•T that 

information w
hich is just 

enough to per
form his own 

job, which is
, need to kno

w, and it mus
t be treated 

by compartmen
tation. 

Q 	What is 
that? 

A 	That is 
where a group

 of people working 

on a special p
roject or secr

et' project wi
ll become 

compartmented
 of from all 

other element
s of the 

agency, so th
ey will not b

e able to kno
w what the 

other individ
ual is doing.
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McGehee-direct-Kennedy 

In my own case, I
 worked in an off

ice -- 

two-man ofice wi
th another indiv

idual for six 

months and I never knew what he was working on. 

(CONTINUED ON NEXT PAGE) 
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DIRECT EXAMINATION BY MR. KENNEDY: {Continued} 

0 	Are these concepts which you have told us about 

briefly, olausible deniability, cover, need to know, 

comoartmentation; are they sionificant concents within the 

structure of an operation of the Central Intelligence 

Aoency, or do they only anoly to certain concepts and not to 

others? 

How would you describe their sianificance? 

A 	In almost all but exceotional cases, they are 

essential concents. 

They are inorained into everythinn that you do. 

Q 	Is there a concept of a -- within the CIA, of a 

need to lie? That is the necessity of orovidina false 

information? 

MR. KIRBY: objection, your Honor. 

A 	All of these concepts -- 

THE COURT: I will permit it. 

A 	All these concepts reruire that You lie, and you 

lie all the time.. 

Q Why? 

A 	Well, if I were overseas and I went un to a man 

and wanted to recruit him as an anent, or I was known as 

CIA; he is not aoino to work with a person who is known as 

CIA. 

I might aooroach him on another hasis. You cannot 
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ooerate under the truth. Then 
you must protect, of course, 

your agent. 

Q 	I can appreciate the need 
to lie to our enemies, 

and I assume the CIA lies to o
ur enemies all the time,'does 

it not? 

A 	Correct. 

a 	What is the need -- do you l
ie to our allies also? 

A 	Oh, yes• 

Q 	As a -- has the CIA lied t
o our elected renresentativps 

in Congress? 

MR• KIRBY: Objection. 

THE COURT: I will permit it. 

A 	Yes• 

Has the CIA, based upon your kn
owledge and 

experience, lied to representa
tives of the Justice Departmen

t? 

A 	Yes. 

Q 	Including the FBI? 

A 	Yes. 

Q 	The CIA would actually li
e to the FBI? 

A 	More the rule than the exce
ntion, I would imagine. 

Q 	More the rule than the exc
eption? 

A 	Certainly -- 

Q 	I am not being judgmental 
about the lie. 

You say that is also endemic, 
that is almost 

essential, it's the agency's v
iew of its own function and 

EASTERN DISTRICT COURT REPORTERS
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oneration; is that clear? 

A 	The director takes the oath of office to 

protect sources and methods, and this extends do
wn to all 

employees. 

This reouires, of course, lying. 

And among the lies, would you say that most common 

that is necessary for the company to tell, who i
s and who is 

not working for it at any given time 

A 	This is the most essential fact -- must not 
be 

revealed. Who its aaents are. 

Q 	Your experience included, as you told us, co
vert 

operations; did it not 

A 	Yes, it did. 

Would you tell us what covert onerations are 

A 	In a broad spectrum, a covert oneration is t
hat 

activity taken to either overthrow or sustain an
other 

foreign government. 

That is the broadest, I think, definition of it.
 

Q 	Are you familiar, sir, from the literature
 in your 

own experiences, wherein our Governmenc has had 
-- I'm not 

talking about our enemies now, I'm talkina about
 our allies --

have had with reference to our allies, an open s
tated Policy 

through treaties or however, and in fact the com
pany has been 

conducting -- covert operations within that alli
ed country 

contrary to that stated public policy -- 
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MR. KIRBY: Objection, your Honor. 

THE COURT: I will permit it. 

A 	That is the purpose of covert operations, to do 

things that cannot be done in the official -- official 

relations. 

THE COURT: I don't think you have answered his 

.question. 

THE WITNESS: Yes, I am aware of many cases. 

Q 	Bear in mind I'm not talking about covert operations 

of the agency in the Peoples Repuhlic of China or the Union 

of Soviet Socialist Republics; I mean our allies, the allies 

of the United States. 

A 	Yes. 

Q 	You conduct covert operations in our allies' 

countries which is contrary to the positions maintained 

publically? 

A 	Yes. 

Q 	Is that a common occurrence or a rare occurrence, 

or how would you characterize its frequency? 

A 	Fairly general -- fairly general. 

I could give examples, if you wish. 

Q 	Would you please, but very briefly. 

THE COURT: How about one example. 

Q 	An example, if you would, please. 

A 	I want to take -- we have been involved in elections 

EASTERN DISTRICT COURT REPORTERS 
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in Italy from virtu
ally the day the ag

ency was created, t
o 

the present. Spent 
millions of dollars

 influencing the 

elections in Italy,
 while our stated p

olicy is non-

interference. We we
re conducting state

 to state relations
 

with them, while th
e Government was tr

ying to elect anoth
er 

Government. 

Q 	I would like to 
bring your attentio

n snecificallv 

to England, if I mi
ght. 

England is of cours
e an ally of the Un

ited States 

of America; is it n
ot 

A Yes- 

Q 	In the literat
ure and in your per

sonal experiences, 

have there been exa
mples where the CIA

 has operated cover
tly 

with reference to E
ngland, contrary to

 our stated nolicy 
of 

an alliance with En
gland? 

A 	There is a very
 key example, in 19

52 -- 

MR. KIRBY: I will 
object to this you

r Honor. 

THE COURT: I will 
permit it. 

Are you going to ti
e it into this case

? 

MR. KENPEDY: Yes, 
I am. It may he so

mewhat 

convoluted at this 
point -- 

A 	In 1952 Mohammed 
Mosadeh{ph} was ele

cted Premier 

of Iran, and he wen
t nationalizing the

 Anglo-American 

oil facility and th
is upset Britain, -

- Britain having th
e 

major interest in t
he oil fields. 
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The agency -- 
this is writte

n in several 

went about -- 
in some cases 

it was with th
e assistance o

f 

British intell
igence, to ove

rthrow the Gov
ernment of Ira

n 

and install Pr
emier -- the S

hah of Iran. 

When the Shah 
of Iran was em

powered, the o
peration 

was very succe
ssful, and onl

y lasted a mat
ter of days. 

When the Shah 
was in power h

e disenfranchi
sed the 

British and ga
ve all oil rig

hts to the Ame
rican oil inte

rests 

That also happ
ened in the Su

ez Canal incid
ent 

where Britain,
 France and Is

rael invaded E
ayot, aid ther

e 

was some ackno
wledgment that

 the US had so
me knowledge, 

let 

them go ahead 
and do it, and

 when there wa
s an exposed, 

position said 
you have to ge

t out of there
; and then 

developed this
 major oil con

sortium in the
 Middle East a

nd 

Britain lost m
uch of its emp

ire. 

As a matter of
 fact, the CIA

 did the same 
in 

Maylasia; did 
they not? 

A 	Yes. 

Q 	In Hong Ko
na the CIA, wi

thout telling 
us the 

details, the'C
IA operated co

ntrary to our 
agreement with

 

England in Hon
g Kong; did th

ey not?. 

A 	Yes, they 
did. 

Q 	Have there 
been occasions

, sir, when th
e company 

found it neces
sary to recrui

t members of o
rganized crime

 

for the -- or 
the Mafia? 
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A 	Yes, there h
ave been two o

r three occaslcInz
,  

There was a su
stained effort

 to assassinat
e Castro. 

The agency rec
ruited a Johnn

y Rosseli{ph},
 I believe his

 name 

was a member o
f the Mafia, t

o implement --
 the Mafia had

 

the gambling r
ights to Cuba 

before Castro 
took over, and

 it 

still had peop
le loyal to it

 in Cuba. 

So Rosseli rec
ruited to help

 him Santos Tr
onicano 

and Sam Gianca
nna{ph}, other

 Mafia figures
 to help recru

it 

out Cubans to 
help carry out

 the assassina
tion of Castro

. 

One assassinat
ion attempt wa

s made before 
the Say 

of Pigs by thi
s group and fi

ve after the B
ay of Pigs. 

Q 	Aside from
 Mafia or ties

 with "organiz
ed crime," 

has the compan
y found it nec

essary to recr
uit known crim

inals, 

that is people
 with connecti

ons to the und
erworld, who h

ave 

already been f
ound guilty of

 criminal acti
vity? 

A 	Yes. 

After the Mafi
a's attemnts f

ailed to kill 
Castro, 

they also recr
uited a known 

assassin to gi
ve it another 

try. 

The agency als
o recruited Co

rsican gangste
rs to --

and armed them
 to be strong 

against the st
rikes being he

ld 

in Marseilles,
 and this buil

t up the Corsi
can strennth -

-

developed into
 the French co

nnection, the 
drug smuggling

 

endeavor; the 
ability of the

 Corsicans- 

MR. KIRBY: Obj
ection. Move t

o be stricken.
 

THE COURT: I w
ill strike the

 last remark a
bout the 
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French connection. 

Q 	Are you saying that the comnanv has on occasion, 

hired armed thugs to Prevent either democratic election 

processes or legitimate union activities in our own allies' 

countries? 

MR. KIRBY: Objection. 

THE COURT: I will sustain that objection. 

Q 	Has the company found it necessary itself to commit 

crimes; a burglary or robbery, particularly? 

A 	Yes. 

Q 	Does the company -- historically and presently 

have an interest in monitoring or knowing about the flow of 

arms in the world? 

A 	This would be a primary reouirement because the 

intelligence collection responsibility -- weapons are a 

political implement, if you know where they're goino, vou 

know the threats to the various Governments. 

 
Therefore, it does monitor weapons shipments 

closely. 

Q 	In that capacity, has the company engaged itself in 

arms trafficking? 

A 	Yes, it has on various occasions -- I am not sure 

what you mean by trafficking; it has supplied weanons. 

Q 	I mean supplying, buying, selling, moving generally 

weapons or firearms. 

EASTERN DISTRICT COURT REPORTERS 
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A 	Oh, yes. 

Q 	Does the company maintain arse
nals of weapons in the 

United States and around the world
 for the purposes of 

trafficking? 

A 	It has arsenals within the Un
ited States, and I 

think the Church Committee report 
said it has -- some 

weapons that it makes -- it has mo
re than most armies in the 

world. 

Q 	Has there been historically b
etween the Central 

Intelligence Agency and the Specia
l Forces of the United 

States Army -- been a special rela
tionship? 

A 	Over the years there has been
 a very close 

relationship. 

When I was in Giadnih Province in 
Vietnam, I 

supervised two special forces that
 were involved in the 

Satsi PRU, Provincial Reconnaisanc
e Unit. This was the 

agency's kill or capture Viet Coma
 program. 

It was ultimately credited with 
2o,1fln0 kills, and 

the Vietnamese estimate it was 
4o,onn kills. 

Q 	I gather then that the C
entral Intelligence Agency 

has engaged in the supplying of ar
ms to insurgent or 

resistance movements in various pa
rts of the world; has it 

not? 

A 	Oh, yes. Europe, Middle Eas
t, Far Fast, whatever. 

Have there been occasions in the l
iterature, and 

EASTERN DISTRICT COURT REPORTERS 

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 

225 CADMAN PLAZA EAST 

WI? IC I"^1 



235J 

based upon your
 experience whe

re the Central 
Intelligence 

Agency was know
ingly or unknow

ingly supplying
 weapons to bot

h 

sides of a part
icular conflagr

ation or battle
? 

MR. KIRBY: Obj
ection. 

THE COURT: I w
ill oermit it.

 

A 	I know ther
e was one examp

le, but it does
 not come 

to my mind. 

We urged the Sh
ah or Iran to a

rm the Kurds 

fighting the Ir
anian; there wa

s a problem bet
ween the Shah •

 

and the Iragian
 Government. 

We armed the Ku
rds and then th

e Shah, and the
 

'raglans made u
p, and we withd

rew all support
 from the Kurds

 

and sort of hel
ped the Iraoian

s to destroy th
e Kurds that 

had initially b
een fighting fo

r us. 

{Continued on 
next page.} 
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Q 	Does the company maintain an arsenal of non- 

United States weapons, firearms; that would mean arms such 

as the AK-47 machine puns, or other foreign made weapons? 

A 	I don't have personal knowledge, but it's'my 

impression, its arsenal have primarily foreign weapons with 

some US weapons, of course. 

Q 	Have you know the company to find it necessary to 

obliterate or remove the serial numbers from US weaoons 

in their possession? 

A 	I do not have a specific knowledge of such. 

It would be essential -- 

MR. KIRBY: Objection. 

THE COURT: Sustained. 

MR. KENNEDY: He said it would be essential. He 

will give an opinion not upon personal knowledge 

but upon his expertise. 

THE COURT: He has not been asked to give an 

expert opinion. 

If you want to put the Question, I will allow it. 

MR. KENNEDY: You're correct, your Honor. 

THE COURT: I'm glad that I'm correct. 

How much longer do you have? 

MR. KENNEDY: Within five or 10 minutes. Would You 

like to break now? 

THE COURT: No. 

EASTERN DISTRICT COURT REPORTERS 
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44 	In yo
ur opinion, whi

ch is baseq u. 
yva.. 

dthe literature
 which you have

 read, would th
e company 

find it neces
sary to obliter

ate or remove s
erial numbers f

rom 

United States m
anufactured wea

pons within its
 possession? 

	

A 
	

The concept of 
Plausible denia

bility would ma
ke it 

essential that 
if the weapons 

were to be -- a
ble to be trace

d 

back to the age
ncy, that such 

weapons when th
ey're dis-

tibuted would h
ave the serial 

numbers removed
• 

	

Q 	When the co
mpany found it 

necessary to re
cruit a 

known criminal,
 or whomever, w

ould the compan
y attempt to 

keep that recru
itino, that rec

ruitment a secr
et? 

	

A 	Oh, yes• 

	

Q 	Would the
 company deny t

he connection b
etween the 

company and tha
t particular re

cruited crimina
l, for examole?

 

	

A 	In almost al
l circumstances

• 

	

Q 	At my reau
est, sir, did y

ou read the dir
ect and 

cross-examinati
on given in thi

s courtroom by 
a gentleman by 

the name of Geo
rge DeMeo? 

	

A 	I did• 

And at my reque
st, sir, did yo

u read the dire
ct and 

cross-examinati
on of a gentlem

an by the name 
of Earl Redick?

 

	

A 	I did• 

	

Q 	I would l
ike to ask you 

sir, some opini
ons with 

reference to so
me facts german

e to this case.
 

Number l, is it
 plausible that

 the CIA would 
want 

EASTERN DISTRICT
 COURT REPORTERS
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0 monitor a
rms traffic

 t:. 11J~ 

America to 
Northern Ir

eland? 

A 	Yes. 

Q 	Why wo
uld they b

e interest
ed in that

 sir? 

A 	I would
 think that

 they'd be 
interested 

for 

several rea
sons. 

Monitoring 
the arms fl

ow to any c
ountry woul

d be 

a charter '
responsibil

ity of the 
agency in s

atisfying i
ts 

intelligenc
e collectio

n requireme
nts. 

I think al
so by moni

toring you
 could als

o control 

to some ext
ent -- what

 is made av
ailable and

 not made 

available..
 

0 	Would 
it be plaus

ible, sir, 
that the CI

A would wan
t 

to keep sec
ret its act

ivities wit
h reference

 to monitor
ing 

arms traffi
c or the fl

ow of arms 
from the Un

ited States
 of 

America to 
the North o

f Ireland? 

A 	It woul
d be especi

ally sensit
ive because

 of our 

relationshi
p with Engl

and, and wo
uld he ther

efore reall
y 

held Quite 
secret. 

Q 	Third/
y, sir, wou

ld it be pl
ausible for

 the 

Central Int
elligence A

gency to ac
tually prov

ide weaoons
 for 

such traffi
cking from 

the United 
States of A

merica to t
he 

North of Ir
eland? 

MR. KIRBY:
 Objection

. "Plausib
le," he is

 

speaking a
s an exper

t. Either 
he has an 

oninion or
 does 

EAsTERN DIST
RICT COURT REPORTERS 
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not• 

THE COURT: I 
think he defin

ed what he mea
ns by 

plausible. 

I will permit 
it in the cont

ext of the def
inition 

that you estab
lished earlier

. 

MR. KIRBY: I w
ill object to 

his aivina an 
oninion 

in this area i
n any event. 

THE COURT: I 
think he is o

ualified. I w
ill oermit 

it. 

THE WITNESS: W
ould you resta

te the questio
n? 

Is it plausibl
e -- by the wa

y, how are vou
 using 

the word plaus
ible? 

A 	Likely to
 be true. 

Q 	All right
. 

Is it plausibl
e, sir, in you

r opinion, tha
t the 

Central Intell
igence Agency 

would actually
 provide arms 

or 

weapons or amm
unition for th

is very traffi
cking that it 

seeks 

to monitor fro
m the United S

tates of Ameri
ca to the mnrt

h of 

Ireland? 

A 	It's a basi
c concept that

 you learn in 
the 1 

operational co
urses, to moni

tor, you must 
be involved --

in monitoring, yo
u probably, de

pending upon y
our goals in t

hat 

particular ope
ration, you mi

ght provide de
fective enuinm

ent!. 

or might provi
de equipment t

hat is not cap
able of accomp

lishing 

the purposes o
f the element.
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You'might provide, on the other hand, very good 

equipment; capable of carrying out the ournoses of the 

operation• 

The classic double-agent ooeration, where two 

intelligence agencies, services, are running an agent, and 

you must provide each service -- if they know of the other 

service's involvement, must provide information that makes 

the operation appear to be genuine• 

Q 	Under your plausible -- under this plausible 

scenario, you mentioned they might -- the agency might find 

it necessary to provide some defective weapons or sub-oar 

weapons; is that correct? 

A 	Yes• 

Q 	Why? 

A 	Well -- 

Q 	Would they provide all defective or sub-Oar? 

A 	If they provided all, the oneration would have 

to end• It would have to be a mixture• 

Q 	Some of the weapons would be operable and others 

would be deliberately -- 

A 	The mix would be such that it would make much of the 

shipment unusable• 

Q 	Would it be olausible for the CIA to obliterate the 

serial numbers from the US weapons used in a traffic of 

arms from the United States of America to the North of 

EASTERN DISTRICT COURT REPORTERS 
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A 	If they were tracable back to the agency, it would 

be essential. 

	

4 	 Q 	So your answer to my auestion is that it would be 

5 plausible? 

	

6 	 A 	Yes. 

	

7 	 Q 	Would it be plausible in this connection for the 

	

8 	Central Intelligence
 Agency to recruit an individual such as 

	

9 	George DeMeo, about w
hom you read from the transcripts of 

	

10 
	this trial? 

A 	Yes, yes. 

There is a oarallel case that is in the news 

	

13 	
today, the Edmund Wilson, Frank Teroil case, where the 

individual Wilson was going around tellinn people I am 

CIA connected, and I am buying weapons; and he bought 

weapons and shipped them against our policy at the time to 

Idi Amin of Uganda and Omar Khadaffi of Libya. 

And he did this by saying I am working for the CIA, 

and I am doing it for the CIA- 

O 	If in fact the company had recruited Georoe DeMeo, 

would it be plausible that the CIA would then find it 

	

22 
	necessary to deny to the -- to the world or to the Justice 

	

23 
	Department or even this Court any connection with George 

DeMeo? 
24 

A 	Yes. 
25 
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Q 	Would it be plausible, si
r, that there would be 

under those circumstances, no
 record within the files of t

he 

Central Intelligence Agency o
f this connection between the

 

Central Intelligence Agency a
nd George DeMeo? 

MR. KIRBY: Objection, your H
onor, as to plausible. 

Objection to the question. 

THE COURT: I will permit it.
 

A 	I imagine deep in the bow
els of one of these 

super sensitive file indices,
 there should be some record.

 

But if -- depending unon how
 the files were set.  

up at the time soft file ope
ration -- possibly not --

but I would assume that somew
here deep in the bowels of th

e 

super secret element there mi
ght be a record. 

I don't know. 

Q 	Lastly, is it plausible 
that a man or a group of 

men could, over a period of a
pproximately 25 years, shin over 

a million dollars worth of we
apons from the United States 

of 

America to the North of Irela
nd without theicomoany, the 

Central Intelligence Agency b
eing aware of it 

MR. KIRBY: Objection. 

THE COURT: I will sustain th
at. 

MR. KENNEDY: I have nothing 
further. Thank you 

very much. Thank you. 

THE COURT: This might be a g
ood time to take a 

little break. Let's take a r
ecess. 

{Continued on next page.} 
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• 

is nor
mally 

when 

experi
ence. 

MR. K
IRBY:

 We h
aven'

t pre
pared

 ours
 yet.

 We w
ill 

get it
 when 

we pre
pare i

t. 

MR. K
ENNED

Y: I 
will 

give 
him a

 copy
 of o

urs w
hen 

we ge
t his

 unle
ss th

e Cou
rt re

quire
s me 

to do
 -- 

THE C
OURT:

 I wo
uld l

ike y
ou to

 do i
t as 

quick
ly 

as po
ssibl

e. I 
think

 he s
hould

 have
 an o

oport
unity

 

to add
ress s

ome of
 your 

charge
s. 

MR. K
ENNED

Y: I 
would

 like
 to a

ddres
s his

 if h
e 

ever g
ets ar

ound t
o prep

aring 
it. 

THE C
OURT:

 You 
will 

have 
it. 

MR. K
ENNED

Y: Th
ank y

ou. 

THE C
OURT:

 Are 
we re

ady? 

MR. K
IRBY:

 Yes,
 your

 Hono
r. 

THE C
OURT:

 Brin
g the

 jury
 in. 

{Jury
 pres

ent.}
 

THE C
OURT:

 Good
 afte

rnoon
, Mr.

 McGe
hee. 

Mr. Ki
rby, y

ou may
 cross

-exami
ne. 

CROSS-
EXAMIN

ATION 
BY MR.

 KIRBY
: 	

r- 

Q 	
Mr. Mc

Gehee,
 you t

estifi
ed tha

t you 
feel i

t's 

plausi
ble th

at the
 CIA w

as inv
olved 

in shi
Poino 

arms t
o the 

IRA, t
o help

 them 
fight 

the Br
itish;

 is th
at you

r test
imony,
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McGehee-cross 

sir? 

A 	No 

No? 

A 	To monitor the arms flow• 

Q 	It's plausible that the CIA would want to monitor 

the arms flow? 

A 	Yes• 

Q 	It is not plausible that the CIA, I thought you 

testified, that it would be plausible that the CIA would 

ship arms to the IRA, to go to Ireland? 

A 	Yes• 

Q 	That is plausible• 

'gut the sole purpose in that -- is that what 

you're saying -- the sole purpose in that is to monitor 

the arms flow? 

A 	No 

Q What? 

A 	No, it is not the sole purpose• 

Q 	What is 	tell the jury what the elements are• 

A 	If the IRA feels that it has a source of weaoons, 

it probably will be hesitant to go to other sources of 

weapons, such as the Soviet Union, the PLO, Libya; and by 

this the agency can sort of centralize, observe and monitor, 

and control the number of weapons that go to the IRA. 
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McGehee-cross 

That would be an
other purpose. 

Q 	So that to 
-- I ask you str

aight out, Mr. M
cGehee, 

you aren't aware
 in actual fact,

 sir, are you, t
hat the CIA 

sent guns to the
 IRA? Just yes o

r no. 

A 	I'm thinking
 whether I can a

nswer or not. I 
can't -- 

also everything as I know it to be. 

No, I am not aware. 

Q 	So your test
imony here today

 is not based 'o
n your 

personal knowled
ge of the facts 

of this case,tha
t is, of 

shipping arms to
 the IRA in Irel

and; is that rig
ht? 

A 'Yes. 

Q 	Is that right? 

A 	Yes. 

Q 	Now -- your 
testimony about 

shipping arms --
 having 

the CIA ship arm
s to the Irish R

epublican Army t
o fight the 

British, that te
stimony comes fr

om your thoughts
 about the 

situation, is th
at right? 

A 	I did not testify to that. 

Q 	You testified
 that to monitor

 the arms going 
to the 

Irish Republican
 Army, and to tr

y to assure the 
Irish 

Republican Army 
that they had a 

source of sunoly
 for arms, 

that it was like
ly that the CIA 

-- which was it 
plausible or 

likely? 

A 	I don't know what your ouestion is. 
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Q 	
Okay

. 

That
 it 

is l
ikel

y or
 pla

usib
le t

hat 
the 

CIA 
woul

d 

ship
 arm

s to
 the

 IRA
 to 

figh
t th

e Br
itis

h. 

A 	
No t

hat 
was 

not 
my t

esti
mony

. 

Q 	
What

 par
t of

 the
 oue

stio
n --

 

A 	
To f

ight
 the

 Bri
tish

 is 
part

 of 
the 

ques
tion

 not
. 

{Con
tinu

ed o
n ne

xt p
age.
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McGehee-cross 

Q 	I will take that out. Let's start over again. 

You have testified, sir, that the CIA might send 

weapons, likely, plausible, send weapons to the IRA to arm 

them in Ireland; is that correct? 

A 	I don't -- you'd have to define your term "arm." 

In the instance that I was using, that many weapons 

would be defective, it would be more of a -- it could be 

mare -- I don't know what it is. 

It could be more of an effort to keep the IRA 

from arming itself, rather than to arm them. 

Q 	This would be an effort of keeping the IRA from 

arming itself? 

A 	With defective weapons. 

Q 	The CIA might be sending them bad weapons instead of 

good ones? 

A 	Yes, and limited the type and quality of the 

weapons. 

• That might be one possible and olausible thina; they 

might be sending bad weaoons as opoosed to good weanons? 

A 	They couldn't be all bad. 

• Some bad as opposed to good; or they might be sending 

weapons because the IRA might not turn to the Soviet Union 

or the PLO for weapons? 

A 	I don't know. 
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McGehee-cross 

Q 	You testified that might be another possibility -- 

A 	You're throwing in the idea of a lot of agod 

weapons• You will have to qualify that for me• 

Q 	You're testifying now, sir, all of this 	none of 

this is based upon your actual knowledge about any direct 

activities involving the CIA and the Irish Republican Army; 

is that right? 

A Yes• 

Q 	This is your thinking, your speculation, as it were? 

A 	Based an other operations similar in nature• 

Q 	But you testified that one of your conceived purposes 

for sending weapons to the IRA might be to prevent them from 

going to some other source? 

A 	Yes• 

Q 	Now would it be fair to say that purpose would be 

a little hard to effectuate if you started Ito send them 

defective weapons; they'd get a little tired of that source 

and start to look for other sources; is that correct? 

A 	That is why you would have to have some aood among 

the bad• 

Q 	A few aood weapons and some bad weaaons; but you're 

not sure how many? 

A 	When you say a few good and some bad, you're using 

different adjectives for different categories. 
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McGehee-cross 

It could be an equal mix, or one way or the other 

mix; I don't know. 

Q 	You don't know. 

By the way, when you came here to the courthouse 

today, were you aware that you were going to testify as an 

expert witness? 

A 	Yes. 

Q 	On this very subject, the CIA and your knowledge 

about the CIA? 

A 	Yes. 

Q 	Now, I believe Mr. Kennedy is -- has taken you 

through your memory of your security agreement with the CIA; 

is that correct? 

A 	That is correct. 

{Continued on next oage.} 
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1 	 McGehee-cross-Kirby 

CROSS EXAMINATION (CONTINUED) BY MR. K/RBY 

Q Are you familiar with that? Do you re-

member what the requirements of that are or'not? 

A 	I can't quote it berbatim. I am familiar 

with the requirements of it, very familiar. 

Q Would you tell the jury what the require-

ments of that are? 

A 	That I pledge that I will never reveal the 

secrets of the C.I.A. without prior Government ap= 

proval. 

Q There are some procedural requirements with 

the security agreement, are there not? 

A 	Yes, there are. 

To submit to review all writings and all 

prepared speeches. 

Q The purpose of that security agreement, 

it has some important purposes, doesni't it -- the 

security agreement, sir? 

Did you hear my question? 

A 	No, I did not. 

Q If you didn't hear, just say you didn't 

hear. I just saw you turn your head. 

There are some important purposes behind 

the security agreement? 

EASTERN DISTRICT COURT REPORTERS 
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McGehee-cross-Kirby 

Is that correct? 

A 	That is correct. 

• For instance, are you aware of a situation 

where a man named Louis Wolf started naiming people 

in Jamaica that he thought were connected with the 

C.I.A.? 

A 	No. 

Q And within hours someone's house was 

machine gunned, an Embassy staff member. 

Are you familiar with that? 

A 	Yes. 

Q You are familiar with that? 

A 	I knew there was a machine gunning. I 

didn't know who it originated. 

Q Would it be fair to say that one of the 

purposes of the security agreement is to keep a 

very careful watch on the release of information to 

protect people's lives -- isn't that right -- among 

other things? 

A 	In your -- in the area of naming names, 

yes. 

Q And on Christmas Eve, 1975, an agent by 

the name of Dick Welch was murdered -- isn't that 

correct -- because he was named in the covert action 
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McGehee-cross-Kirby 

bulletin? 

A 	No. 	That is not correct. 

Q You are not familiar with that? 

A 	Yes. I am familiar with it -- very famil- 

iar. 

Q You are familiar with that?. 

A 	Yes. 

Q Are you familiar with the covert action 

bulletin? 

A 	Yes. 

Q Would you tell the jury what it is? 

A 	It is a magazine. 

Q Can you tell the jury what type of maga-

zine it is what subject matter it covers? 

A 	It is a magazine about the C.I.A. 

• Are you familiar with any of the people 

connected with it? 

A 	Yes. 

Q Who are you familiar with? 

A 	Various people connected with it. 

Q Can you tell us the names, or is that pro-

tected by the security agreement? 

A 	I don't think I should talk about names 

of one side when I cannot talk about the names of 
EASTERN DISTRICT COURT REPORTERS 

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
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McGahee-c
ross-Kirb

y 

he other 
side. 

Q 
	You mean,

 what you
 are sayi

ng is tho
se 

aren't co
nnected, 

the secur
ity agree

ment does
n't pre-

vent you 
from talk

ing about
 the cove

rt action
 bulle-

tin of pe
ople conn

ected wit
h it, but

 you, in 
your 

sense of 
fair play

, you don
't feel t

hat is ri
ght? 

A 
	I don't k

now. 

I would h
ave to th

ink about
 it. 

Q 
	Well, are

 there an
y other r

ules of l
aw 

that is p
reventing

 you from
 disclosi

ng these 
people's 

names? 

A 	If y
ou want t

he names,
 people I

 know are
 

with it. 
Ellen Ray

, William
 Shapp an

d Louis W
olf. 

There are
 probably

 others. 

Q Have you 
met any o

f those p
eople fai

rly 

recently?
 

A 	Yes,
 I have. 

Q Who have 
you met? 

A 	All 
three. 

Q Where was
 that? 

A 	Wher
e was tha

t? 

Q Yes. 

A 	In D.
C. 

Q Did you p
er chance

 meet the
m out of 

the 
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McGahee-cz ,,,,_ 

`entry, do you remember? 

A 
	Yes. 

Q 
	Where d

id you 
meet th

em out 
of the country? 

A 	In the Caribbean. 

Q 
	Barbado

s? 

A 	Ba
rbados.

 

Q You gave a speech in Barbad
os; is 

that 

correct? 

A 	Ye
s. 

Q 
	Was tha

t speech critica
l of th

e C.I.A
., 

or was 
it comp

limenta
ry? 	

How wou
ld you 

charact
erize 

it? 

A 
	Explana

tory. 

Q 
	Explana

tory? 

A 
	It was 

materia
l for m

y book 
-- my b

ook 

that ha
s been 

cleared by the age
ncy. 

Q I am so
rry? 

A 	M
y book 

that ha
s been 

cleared
 by the

 

agency. 

Q Now, di
d you c

lear th
e speec

h with 
the 

agency, do you remember? 

A 	No. 	I
 just u

sed the
 materi

al from
 the 

book. I
t was n

ot a pr
epared 

speech.
 It was

 just e
x-

temoora
neous r

emarks 
that ar

e not r
equired

 to be 

EASTERN 
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 COURT R
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6 	
McGehee -

cross-Kir
by 

Q And when 
you say, 

extempora
rlous rem

arks, 

do you fe
el that t

oday's --
 your tes

timony he
re, to-

day, is e
xtemporan

eous rema
rks? 

A 	It i
s based o

n what ha
s been cl

eared in 

the book;
 yes. 

Q Sir, you 
don't fee

l this ne
eds to be

 clear-

ed, your 
appearanc

e here ne
ed to be 

cleared? 

A 	I ha
ve been i

nvolved w
ith the c

learance 

prosess f
or moats 

and month
s, and I 

think eve
rything 

that I ha
ve said h

as been c
leared so

me times 
that the 

agency is
 tired of

 seeing m
e. 

Q Do you ha
ve any pr

esent lit
igation g

oing 

on with t
he Centra

l Intelli
gence Age

ncy? 

A 	Yes,
 I do. 

Q Tell the 
jury abou

t that, p
lease? 

A 	I wr
ote an ar

ticle for
 the Nati

onal maga
- 

zine on a
 C.I.A. d

is-inform
ation op 

ration in
 El 

Salvador,
 and I wo

uld have 
to limit 

my commen
ts be-

cause it 
is in lit

igation, 
and in In

donesia, 
which 

resulted 
in the de

ath of a 
half mill

ion to a 
million 

people. 

The agenc
y deleted

 certain 
portions 

of that 

article, 
sort of a

uthentica
te the wh

ole artic
le, be 

cause the
y classif

y it as l
ies. 
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irby 

I challenged th
e deletion in c

ourts, be-

cause I say it 
is not classifi

ed information,
 and the 

case is going o
n. 

Q Sir, one of the
 central purpos

es, would 

you agree with 
me, of the Cent

ral Intelligenc
e Agency 

is an informati
on network? 

A 	No. 

Q No? 

A 	I can quo
te to you from 

the Government,
 

studies and say
 that is not wh

at it is -- it 
might 

be its purpose 
it was ostensib

ly established 
for,. 

but that is not
 what it does. 

Q When you say it
 is not an info

rmation net-

work -- 

A 	Primarily.
 

Q Primarily an in
formation netwo

rk? 

A 	Not primar
ily. 

Q I know I can he
ar you. 

When you say it
 is not an info

rmation net-

work primarily,
 you would incl

ude in the area
 of 

information obt
aining informat

ion about the R
ussians, 

for instance, s
uch as spying, 

that would be i
ncluded 

in information?
 

Is that correct
? 

EASTERN DISTRICT COURT REPORTERS 
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McGehee-cross-Kirby 

A 	Yes. 

Q And obtaining information about other un-

friendly countries, such as possibly China or Lybia 

or other countries? 

A 	Dissidents in the United States. 

Q Dissidents in the United States. 

I am just asking vowabout obtaining in-

formation in other areas; is that correct? 

A 	Yes. 

Q Yes. 

A 	It does that; yes. 

But youu feeling is that that -- I don't 

know -- your feeling is not one of its primary pur-

poses;is that right? 

A 	It's not my feeling. It's the feeling of 

Congressional Committees. 

Q Well, you are up there giving your opinion. 

Would you just give us your opinion? Is 

it your opinion or not that it • primary purpose 

is information gathering? 

A 	Its charter purpose states it is an 

information gathering agency. 

However, that is not what it primarily 

devotes its time and attention to. 

EASTERN DISTRICT COURT REPORTERS 
UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 

223 CADMAN PLAZA EAST 



Mcnenea-C7r.
 

Now, your 
experience

, sir, has
 been pri-

MarilY in 
the Far Ea

st; is tha
t right? 

A Yes. 

Q 
	Oh, by the

 way, what
 G.S. leve

l did you 

leave the 
Central In

telligence
 Agency? 

A G.S. 13. 

G.S. 13. W
ould you c

onsider th
at to be 

a high position at the agency? 

A 	Mid-level.
 

Q 
	Mid-level?

 

A 	Yes. 

Q 
	You wouldn

't feel that you were o
ne of 

the -- in 
a corporat

ion, for i
nstance, y

ou wouldn'
t 

consider yourself the chai
rman of th

e board, o
r the 

president, in relati
onship to 

the C.I.A.
? 

A Not at all
. 

Q 
	You wouldn

't conside
r yourself

 a vice 

president in charge of one of the divisi
ons of a 

company, i
n relation

ship to th
e C.I.A.? 

A No 

Q 
	You'd have

 to say so
mething. I

 heard you
 

say it. 

You cannot
 shake your head 

because th
e 

court repo
rter canno

t get that
 down. 
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Would you consider yourself -- I mean, 

in relationship to a large manufacturing corpora-

tion, in its relationship to the C.I.A., would you 

consider yourself like a branch manager -- a whole 

manufacturing facility? 

A 	I don't know that I can make the compari- 

son. 

Q You -- 

A 	Would you care for a commentary on this? 

MR. KIRBY: No, thank you. 

Q In your position, therefore, you might not 

know all the -- all that there is to know, sir, on 

the record keeping function of the C.I.A., or the 

information gathering function of the C.I.A.? 

Isn't that true? 

A 	I probably know more than -- I would say -- 

ninety-eight percent of the people in the agency 

about this particular subject. 

Q Is that -- is -- your belief on that, is 

that from your experience in the agency, or after 

you got out, your reading and studying? 

A 	It comes from reading the Rockefeller 

Commission report. It comes from my readings and 

studies and experiences while within the ag -Incv. 

EASTERN DISTRICT COURT REPORTERS 
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Q Well, yo
u are no

t tellin
g us -- 

you are 

not tell
ing this

 jury, a
re you, 

that nin
ety-eigh

t 

of the a
gency --

 the C.I
.A. were

 lower t
han you 

were 

in the h
iarachy 

in the a
gency? 

A 	Th
at wasn'

t your q
uestion.

 

Q I know t
hat was 

not my q
uestion.

 

I am ask
ing you 

whether 
you are 

telling 

the jury
 that? 

A 	Tha
t I have

 a bette
r knowle

dge of t
he .rec-

 

ord proc
edures -

- 

Q Let me a
sk you a

gain. 

MR. KENN
EDY: I w

ouldask 
him to b

e allow
-

ed to fi
nish his

 answer.
 

THE COURT: I would 
allow hi

m to res
tate 

the ques
tion. 

Perhaps 
you can 

establis
h the hi

ghest G.
S. 

ratings 
are in t

he agenc
y. 

Q 	Do
 you kno

w the hi
ghest ra

ting? 

A 	The
 highest

 level i
n the Un

ited Sta
tes 

Governme
nt is a 

G.S. 18,
 but the

re is an
 extra s

tep 

there fo
r super 

grades. 

I don't 
know wha

t they c
all it. 

It would
 

be the D
irector,

 I assum
e, would

 be atov
e the G.

S. 

rating. 
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The lowest
 being, G.

S. 1, and 
those in b

e- 

tween. 

Q 	And,
 generally

, for mana
gement and

 super- 

visory per
sonnel in 

an agency 
like the C

.I.A., isn
't 

it general
ly that su

ch managem
ent and su

pervisory 

personnel 
are G.S. 1

4s and abo
ve? 

A 	No. 

Q 	Do yo
u have any

 familiari
ty with th

e G.S.' 

rating wit
h the F.B.

I.? 

A 	No. 

(CONTINUED
 ON NEXT P

AGE.) 

23;),! 
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oss-Hirby 
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McGehee-cr
oss 

CROSS-EXA
MINATION 

BY MR• KI
RBY: {Con

tinued} 

Q 	After 
seven year

s, a Speci
al Agent s

uch as Age
nt 

Winslow is
 a GS-13? 

A 	I don'
t know• 

Q 	Any s
upervisor 

of the FBI
 is a GS-1

4 or above
? 

A 	I have
 no idea w

hat the FB
I does• 

Q 	Any su
pervisor b

eyond that
, such as 

a supervis
or 

of the New
 York offi

ce, is at 
least a GS

-15 if not
 a GS-16? 

You really
 don't kno

w about th
at? 

A 	No• 

Q 	Now a
re you te

lling the
 jury, si

r, that y
ou, in 

your oosit
ion at the

 CIA, that
 there wer

e -- about
 98% of 

the peopl
e lower t

han you a
nd those 

that woul
d be in t

he 

hierarchy,
 would hav

e generall
y a lower 

understand
ing -- 

MR• MOGUL
ESCU: He 

didn't sa
y that --

 

THE COURT
: That is

 the ques
tion• Is 

that what
 

you are sa
ying? 

Q 	Would 
it be fair

 to say, s
ir, there 

were a 

sizeable n
umber of p

eople in t
he CIA who

 were suoe
rior to yo

u 

in their r
ank and th

e organiza
tional str

ucture of 
the CIA? 

Is that co
rrect? 

A Correc
t. 

Mr• McGehe
e, with re

gard to ke
eoina reco

rds on 

agents of 
the CIA, y

ou testifi
ed -- test

ified abou
t that 

EASTERN DISTRICT' COURT" REPORTERS 
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ito is 
the+. 

Yes, I
 did. 

Q 	Ha
ve you

 testi
fied t

hat it
's pos

sible,
 or as

 a 

genera
l rule

 in sp
ecific

 situa
tions,

 that 
the CI

A does
 not 

keep r
ecords

 on ag
ents; 

is tha
t your

 testi
mony? 

A 	Th
ey hav

e some
 of th

e file
s on s

ensiti
ve sub

jects 

and Po
ssibly

 on ag
ents t

hat wo
uld no

t get 
into t

he off
icial 

record
 syste

m. 

Q 	
Are yo

u tell
ing th

e jury
 that 

you ar
e full

y fami
liar 

with t
he off

icial 
record

 syste
m of t

he CIA
? 

A 	I h
ad tre

mendou
s expe

rience
 worki

ng wit
h it, 

and 

I have
 read 

the Ch
urch, 

Rockef
eller 

Commit
tee re

port w
hich 

dealve
d into

 the s
ubject

 at so
me len

gth, an
d tell

s how 
the 

files 
are so

 seclu
ded an

d segr
egated

 that 
things

 aet l
ost. 

If you
 wish,

 I cou
ld rea

d the 
oertin

ent se
ctions

 

from t
he Roc

kefell
er rep

ort. 

Q 	It
's oka

y. 

But th
at is 

from y
our re

adings
 outsi

de the
 agenc

y, 

and no
t from

 your 
unders

tandin
g of e

xactly
 how t

he 

agency
's fil

ing sy
stem w

orks f
rom yo

ur wor
king i

nside 
the 

agency
? 

A 	No,
 it's 

from b
oth. 

Q 	Bot
h. 

Do you
 feel 

that y
ou wer

e at a
 high 

enough
 level

 of 

the CI
A to r

eally 
have a

ccess 
to the

 infor
mation

 as to
 how 

EASTERN
 DISTRI
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'the whole 
information 

and file ret
rieval syste

m of :n& 

works, so yo
u can give y

our opinion 
here? 

A 	You say
 the whole• 

Ho, I don't 
know the who

le• 

Nobody in the 
agency knows

 the whole. 

Q 	You are
 confident o

f that opini
on, that nob

ody in 

the agency k
nows the who

le file-keep
ing system -

- 

A 	I didn't 
say the whol

e -- underst
anding of th

e 

whole• 

Q 	You mean
, knows the 

name of ever
y agent? 

A 	No• 

Q 	What do
 you mean, k

nows the who
le filekeepi

ng 

system? 

A 	That kno
ws where eve

ry file is, 
and what eve

ry 

little offic
e has set up

• 

No one there
 knows that•

 I could giv
e you an 

example, 'if 
you wish -- 

Q 	No• 

Let me just 
ask you this

, and try to
,be responsi

ve 

to my question
s, if you wi

ll. 

MR. KENNEDY:
 I object to

 that. He is
 being more 

responsive t
han Mr• Kirb

y cares to h
ave him• 

THE COURT: N
o reparte, p

lease• 

MR. KIRBY: T
hank you, Ju

dge• 

Q 	What you
're saying i

s, that you'
re sure that

 there 

is no one at
 the CIA who

 knows where
 every file 

is? 
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McGehee-cross 

That is fairly normal
; isn't it? You mean,

 not 

even -- somebody at th
e US Attorney's Office

 would know where 

every file on every c
ase is is that correc

t? 

A 	True• 

Q 	That is sort of 
stating the obvious? 

A 	Every file system,
 too. 

Q 	Every once in a while
 files can be misplace

d by 

accident? 

A 	I would be willing
 to give you numerous 

examples to 

demonstrate -- 

Q 	Would you try to answer
 the ouestions I ask, 

all 

right? 

What I am asking you 
sir, whether you feel

 that you 

were in a high enough 
position in the aaency

 to he able to 

understand the file sy
stem in toto? 

A 	No• 

Q No? 

A 	No one understands 
it in toto• 

Q 	Your opinion about 
the aaency, and this i

s your 

opinion from your expe
rience, no one could u

nderstand the 

methods of keeping fil
es at the agency compl

etely? 

A 	Not that one coul
d; no one does• 

Q 	'10 one does understa
nd that• Your opinion 

is, it's 

generally chaotic at t
he agency; is that wha

t you're telling 

EASTERN DISTRICT COURT 
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s jury? 

A 	yo• 

Q 	Sir, you testified th
at -- let me ask you 

There are very important 
purposes served by 

keeping records of who ha
s been an agent; is that 

correct? 

A 	Yes• 

Q 	One purpose would be
 if the person didn't wor

k 

well as an agent; is that
 correct? 

A 	I don't see the point.
 

I am not askino you wheth
er you see the ooint of m

y 

questions, sir• Just try
 to answer them• If ther

e is an 

objection, the Judge will
 rule on them• 

A 	What was your questio
n again? 

Q 	One of the important 
purooses of keepine files

 

on an agent, or an operat
ive of the CIA, is to det

ermine 

whether that person worke
d out as an agent? 

A 	If you wanted one of a
 myriad of reasons for do

ing 

it, yes. 

Q 	There are a myriad of
 reasons? 

A 	Maintaining files on agents; yes. 

Q 	The second reason woul
d be whether he had been 

-- 

whether his cover had bee
n blown, so to speak; tha

t is a 

term that you would be fa
miliar with, cover being 

blown? 

A 	Yes. 

EASTERN DISTRICT COURT REPORTERS 
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McGehee-cross 

That would be an important 
reason? 

A 	Yes. 

Q 	The third reason might 
be to keeo an -- accurate 

information about the perso
n, so that if the agency wa

s 

called upon to use that per
son again for some puroose,

 it 

could go back to these file
s and determine whether the

 agent 

was blown, or whether the p
erson didn't work out well 

or 

whether that person was a d
ouble agent, or as you say,

 a 

myriad of reasons; is that 
correct? 

A 	A myriad of reasons, y
es. 

Q 	Your testimony about some
 of the files, sir, is that

 

these are files -- which on
ly the soft file exists, an

d no 

other record of them exists
; is that correct? 

A 	There are two types of
 soft files. 

One is sort of an informal 
file that you set up on 

your own that you're going 
to use for whatever you wan

t. 

You don't particularly care
 whether it gets -- it 

is sort of a convenience fi
le. 

And there is one that is es
tablished that it 

will deliberately not get i
nto the permanent record sy

stem, 

so that it can be destroyed
 easily, and there will nev

er be 

any record of such. 

Q 	You're sure about the 
existence of those second 

types of soft files; is tha
t correct? That is clear in

 your 

EASTERN DISTRICT COURT REPORTERS 
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McGehee-cros
s 

4ind? 

A 	I believ
e it is ment

ioned in the
 Rockefeller

 

Commission r
eport. 

Q 	I am t
alking about

 you. 

A 	From my
 readings, y

es. 

Q 	From you
r readings. 

Now did you 
testify, sir

, that the s
tandard way 

of 

operating an
 agent, that

 the agent w
ould have no

 ability to 

contact back
 the person 

who was oper
ating him? 

A 	That woul
d be the ide

al, not the 
standard. 

Q 	That wo
uld be the i

deal way? 

A 	In a sec
urity sense 

it would be 
ideal, but n

ot 

efficiency. 
There is a b

alance betwe
en security 

and 

efficiency. 

As we learn 
in our class

room exercis
e, to be 

perfectly cl
ear, you wou

ldn't have a
ny contact w

ith anyone. 

But you woul
dn't do very

 much. 	Th
ere is a bal

ance there• 

In an ideal 
situation yo

u would have
 -- where th

e 

agent could 
not would no

t know how t
o contact so

meone and 

yet be effic
ient. 

Q 
	

Y.ou don't k
now whether 

it is the cu
stomary and 

standard way
; is that ri

ght? 

A 	You mean
 of my own e

xperience, o
r generally

 -- 

Q 	Is ther
e a custom a

nd practice 
in the CIA, 

in your 

EASTERN DISTRICT COURT REPORTERS 
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v 

McGehee-cross 

It varies with the s
ituation. 

Q 	Now, sir, you te
stified that you bel

ieve that the 

primary function of 
the CIA is to conduc

t covert operations;
 

is that your testimo
ny? 

A 	That is what the 
Church Committee rep

ort concluded. 

I am asking you what
 your testimony is. 

A 	It's quite obviou
s that is the purpos

e -- the 

general purpose, the
 major ourpose. 

Q 	Are you familiar,
 sir, with the nroced

ures that go 

into -- that is, the 
paperwork that goes i

nto authorization 

for setting up a cov
ert operation? 

A 	Somewhat, yes. 

Q 	Not fully famili
ar with it? 

A 	I have been invol
ved in it. I don't k

now that I 

can remember every s
tep. 

They change the proce
dures -- the procedur

es have 

Changed over the ye
ars. 

{Continued on next p
age.} 
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McGehee-cross-Kirby 

- Q 

sir? 

Well, are you familiar with Executive Ord
er 11905, 

A 	Would you identify it better th
an that? 

Q I am sorry? 

A 	I don't know it by number. 	I 
might know it by 

title. 

Q Concerning special activities of the CIA 
and 

how those are to be authorized; are you fa
miliar with that? 

MR. KENNEDY: May we have a date of the Ex
ecutive 

Order? 

MR. KIRBY: February, 1976. 

MR. KENNEDY: Thank you. 

A 	No. I would have to read it befo
re I could tell 

you what I know. 

Q 
	And are you familiar with any of the other

 guidelin 

with regard to authorization for setting u
p, covert operationsi  

sir? 

A Guidelines? 

Q Yes. 

A 	Yes. 

Q Are you familiar with those? Are you famil
iar with 

the approvals that are required for the se
tting up of a 

covert operation? 

A 	Yes, generally. And they vary with
 each situation. 
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Q Is that at 
present the

y vary with
 each situa

tion 

as far as y
ou know? 

A 	The
 most curre

nt informat
ion is yes 

they do, mo
st 

of the curr
ent availab

le informat
ion I shoul

d say. 

Q Well, would
 it be fair

 to say tha
t any cover

t 

operation l
aunched now

, sir, that
 it require

s president
ial 

approval, p
residential

 authorizat
ion? 

A 	Any? 
I am sure t

hat some mi
ght require

 it. 

The general
 procedure 

is -- 

Q Any "specia
l activity"

 of the CIA
? 

A 	Any s
pecial acti

vity? 

Yes. 

A 	No, no
t any. 

The Nationa
l Security 

Council app
roves some 

covert 

operations.
 Some do no

t require N
ational Sec

urity Counc
il 

approval. S
ome possibl

y would req
uire presid

ential appr
oval. 

I am not aw
are of that

. But the N
ational Sec

urity Counc
il 

being an ar
m of the pr

esidency is
 a very clo

se relation
ship. 

So if the N
ational Sec

urity Counc
il approves

 of it, one
 

might assum
e that the 

president i
s aware of 

it. 

Q Now, let me
 ask you th

is, do you 
know what s

pecial 

activity -- 
the word "sp

ecial activi
ty" that is 

a terra of 

art, is it 
not? I mean

 that is a 
specific te

rm that is 

used in the
 CIA? Are y

ou familiar
 with that 

term at all
? 
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I have heard it.
 The literature 

uses -- 2 

`to think of cov
ert operations a

nd special activ
ities as cne 

and the same. 

	

Q 
	That is how you 

consider them, s
pecial activitie

s 

and covert activ
ities, one and t

he same? 

	

A 	That is h
ow I would consi

der the tern, ye
s, the 

terms. 

	

Q 	Would it b
e fair to say th

at you are not f
amiliar 

with then Execut
ive Order 12036 

which came out d
uring the 

middle of the Ca
rter Administrat

ion which requir
ed that any 

special activity
 of the CIA obta

in presidential 
approval? 

Are you familiar
 with that? 

	

A 
	Any covert opera

tions required s
pecial approval 

	

of the 	president
? 	Is that it

? 

	

Q 
	Yes. 

	

A 
	I am not familia

r with that at a
ll, no. 

But I think I wo
uld tend to ques

tion that withou
t 

reading it. 

	

Q 
	Now, let me just

:ask you one fin
al question. 

You are not awar
e, sir, of any s

ecret rule of la
w 

that provides th
at a CIA agent w

ho testifys with
 regard to 

facts in a case,
 that he is immu

ne from perjury,
 prosecution? 

	

A 
	The CIA agent is

 immune from per
jury? 

	

Q 	Yes. 
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I know Helms was convicted of perjury. 

Right. 

For testifying. 

Right. He perjured himself and he was convicted? 

Isn't that right? 

A 
	

Yes, with I think a $2,000 fine. And he went off. 

And the fine was paid by the CIA or a CIA employee. 

Well, he was the Director of the CIA? 

A 
	

Right. 

Q 	Would it be fair to say that if the Director is 

not immune to perjury that any lesser officials, they wouldn' 

be immune from perjury, is that right? 

A 
	

The reason why I am pausing is there has been a 

recent effort to make the CIA people immune from perjury. 

I do not know whether that law has been passed or not. 

But there have been efforts along those lines. 

Q 
	

There have been? 

A 
	

Yes sir, there has been. 

But you don't know if those have been passed into 

law? 

A 
	

That is right. 

MR. KIRBY: Judge, would it be possible to take 

judicial notice of the fact that those laws certainly 

are not on the books that you and I can read. 
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